
SACRE
3.45 pm TUESDAY, 7TH MARCH, 2017

TRELEWIS COMMUNITY SCHOOL
This Agenda has been prepared by the 

Democratic Services Department. Any member of the public requiring information should 
contact the department on (01685 725284) or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk.

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be found 
on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers.

AGENDA

1. Welcome and presentation from Trelewis Primary 
School 

2. Apologies for absence 

3. Declarations of Interest 

4. Minutes of last meeting on the 1st November 2016 1 - 6

5. Matters Arising 

6. Analysis of examination results 2016 (See 
Appendix) 

7 - 10

7. KS3 Levels Data 2015 and 2016 11 - 14

8. Examinations Specifications / GCSE Support 
Programme 

15 - 16

9. National Curriculum Review and Assessment:  
Update 

17 - 20

10. Estyn Annual Remit 2017/18 21 - 22

11. Holocaust Memorial Day 2017:  Feedback  -  
SACRE Members 

12. WASACRE Issues: 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


 Feedback from meeting at Carmarthen  -  
18th November 2016.

 Verbal Feedback on Spring Meeting at Usk, 
Monmouthshire  -  3rd March 2017.

 Representation at the Summer WASACRE 
Meeting at Wrexham  -  7th July 2017.

 Nominations to the WASACRE Executive.

23 - 32

13. Correspondence 

 Estyn response in relation to the Monitoring 
visit at Twynyrodyn Primary School.

 Letter sent to all Schools within the County 
Borough in relation to their Statutory 
requirements for Religious Education.  

33 - 40

14. Any other item deemed urgent by the Chair 

COMPOSITION: Councillors E Galsworthy (Chair) 

K Moran (Vice-Chair)

Councillor G Lewis

A  Jones, S Bernard Henderson, L McCarthy, H Price, 
J Jones, K Thomas, M Carrington, L Draper, D O'Keefe, 
A Pitt, A Star, Rev. M Prevett, J Brill and Vicky Thomas

together with appropriate officers

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


MINUTES OF MEETING

SACRE MEETING
TUESDAY, 1ST NOVEMBER, 2016

PRESENT: Councillor E Galsworthy (In the Chair)

Councillor G Lewis

Professional Associations:
A  Jones, S Bernard Henderson, L McCarthy, J Jones and 
M Carrington

Faith Communities:
A Pitt and D O'Keefe

LA Representatives:
V Thomas and S Bowen

Karen Vokes (Democratic Services Officer)

ITEM 
NO.

AGENDA MATTER DECISION

579  Election of 
Chairperson

RESOLVED that:

Councillor Ernie Galsworthy was formally re-elected as 
Chair.

580  Election of  Vice 
Chairperson

RESOLVED that:

Councillor Kate Moran was formally re-elected as Vice 
Chairman.

Councillor Ernie Galsworthy took the Chair

581  Presentation on 
Religious Education at 
Afon Taf High School

Amanda Jones made a presentation to members in relation 
to the teaching of religious education at Afon Taf High 
School, and outlined the following in detail:

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



 Background of the School’s Religious Education 
lessons.  

 Assessment Tasks.

 GCSE Short Course/Full Course. 

 Religious Studies at ATHS.

 Experiential Learning to enable pupils to re-enact 
puja, Eucharist, baptisms, coming of age 
ceremonies and weddings.

 Religion Neutral Exercise.

 Rewarding Excellence at the School.

The Chair thanked Amanda Jones for her very informative 
presentation.  

582  Apologies for absence Apologies for absence received from Councillor Kate 
Moran, Helen Price, Lucy Draper and Ann Star. 

583  Declaration of Interests No declarations of interest were made.

584  Minutes of the meeting 
held on 7th June 2016 
(including Schedule of 
Meetings 2016/17)

RESOLVED that:

The minutes of the meeting held on 7th June 2016 were 
submitted and approved.

585  Matters Arising Vicky Thomas advised that an article has now been 
publicised on RE News in relation to Justine Jones’ 
presentation at March’s meeting on the use of thinking skills 
in RE.  

Vicky Thomas also advised the Committee that she will 
update members at a future meeting on the response from 
Mark Campion in relation to the recent outcome of the 
Estyn Inspection for Twynyrodyn Community School. 

586  Membership Update Vicky Thomas gave an update on membership of the 
Committee.  

Sarah Bowen advised that she will now be the 
representative from the Local Authority on SACRE. 

587  SACRE Annual Report Vicky Thomas referred to the SACRE’s Annual Report for 
2015/16 and led the Committee through the Executive 
Summary and responded to questions raised. 

Vicky Thomas then led Members through the 2015-18 
SACRE Development Plan and advised of progress made 
on issues identified within the plan. 

RESOLVED that:

Page 2



 Following amendments identified within the Annual 
Report and Development Plan, the report be 
approved.   Vicky Thomas to make amendments 
and send back to Karen Vokes. 

 The Annual Report be circulated to the Department 
for Education and Skills (DfES) together with the 
organisations listed in Appendix 6 of the report by 
the 30th December 2016.

 Members note the progress made with the 
Development Plan.  

588  SACRE Development 
Plan 2015 - 2018:  
Progress Report (see 
Annual Report)

The SACRE Development Plan for 2015-18 was discussed 
as part of the previous item. 

589  Inspection Report 
Analysis Autumn 2015 
- Summer 2016

Vicky Thomas referred to the School Inspection Reports in 
relation to the 3 primary schools, namely YGG Santes 
Tydfil, YGG Coed Dderwen, Cyfarthfa Park Primary and 2 
secondary schools, namely Cyfarthfa and Penydre High 
Schools.   

She led Committee through the outcomes of the 
inspections.

RESOLVED that:

Members note the contents of the inspection reports. 

590  RE and the National 
Curriculum:  Update

Vicky Thomas updated members in relation to the Welsh 
Government meeting with WASACRE Officers on the 13th 
September 2016, the Policy Forum for Wales Keynote 
Seminar and NAPfRE Guidance.   

RESOLVED that:

 SACRE notes the developments relating to the 
position of RE in the curriculum. 

 Sarah Bowen to update members as and when 
required. 

591  GCSE Religious 
Studies:  Update

Vicky Thomas advised that the A/AS level specifications 
have been approved and are in place for first teaching from 
September 2016.   The GCSE specifications, however, 
were delayed and deferred by Qualifications Wales until first 
teaching in 2017.   

Discussion ensued it was RESOLVED that:

 SACRE note the developments relating to the 
revised specifications for GCSE. 

592  Inclusive SACRE's 
Award

Discussion ensued whether this SACRE would apply for the 
2017 Accord Inclusivity Award, which is seeking to reward 

Page 3



those SACRE’s who boost the growth of inclusion, cohesion 
and mutual understanding between those of different 
religions and beliefs.  

Vicky Thomas advised that the correspondence received is 
very informative but, on this occasion, it was RESOLVED 
that the Committee will not be progressing this.  

593  WASACRE Minutes of the WASACRE Meeting on 23rd June 2016

 Vicky Thomas led Committee in detail through the 
Minutes of the WASACRE meeting at Rhyl, 
Denbighshire on the 23rd June 2016 and updated 
members in relation to managing the right of 
withdrawal from Religious Education and results of 
the Welsh Baccalaureate and RE survey.  

RESOLVED that:  
Vicky Thomas draft a letter for Sarah Bowen to 
remind Schools on fulfilling statutory requirements 
of teaching RE for key stage 4.   

WASACRE meeting on the 18th November 2016

 Discussion ensued in relation to the next 
WASACRE meeting in Carmarthenshire on the 18th 
November 2016, and it was agreed that members 
contact Karen Vokes to confirm if they are able to 
attend so that this can be confirmed with Libby 
Jones at WASACRE.  

Date of Spring WASACRE Meeting

 Vicky Thomas advised that the Spring WASACRE 
meeting has now been confirmed at 
Monmouthshire for the 3rd March 2017.  

594  Holocaust Memorial 
Day 2017

Vicky Thomas referred the Committee to the report.

She advised that Holocaust Memorial Day is an annual 
event that takes place on the 27th January which marks the 
anniversary of the liberation of Auschwitz-Birkenhau 
concentration camp.  

She advised that Schools are encouraged to participate in 
the Holocaust Memorial Day and outlined some events that 
will take place throughout the Borough. 

Secondary teachers referred to the  use of live streaming 
from the Holocaust Educational Trust website for those 
teachers who wished to avail themselves of this facility. 

RESOLVED that:

 Vicky Thomas to draft letter to all Schools.

595  Correspondence No correspondence was discussed. 

Page 4



596  Any other business as 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair

The Chair advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent.  

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO: STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR RELIGIOUS 
EDUCATION

DATE: MARCH 7th 2017

SUBJECT: ANALYSIS OF EXAMINATION RESULTS 2016

A  PURPOSE OF REPORT 

To inform members of the attainment at GCSE and A/AS level of Merthyr 
Tydfil pupils in Religious Studies and Religious Education for 2016

B BACKGROUND

The information for 16 year- olds currently relates to those electing to follow a 
course in religious studies in Years 10 and 11 or A/ AS level and to those 
following GCSE short course in Religious Studies as the schools’ provision for 
RE as part of the basic curriculum.

It should be noted that definitive conclusions cannot be drawn because the 
figures represent raw scores and do not necessarily reflect the selectivity of 
the entry and in some cases the numbers are too small to be statistically 
significant.

RECOMMENDATIONS

 That SACRE note and discuss the examinations results 2016
 To consider circulating the findings to secondary schools in the Authority.
 

PLEASE NOTE:

THE RESULTS RECORDED HERE ARE FOR THOSE PUPILS ENTERED FOR 
THE EXAMINATIONS.  THEY DO NOT NECESSARILY REFLECT THE NUMBER 
OF PUPILS FOLLOWING THE EXAMINATION COURSE NOR DO THEY 
INDICATE HOW WELL PUPILS ARE PERFORMING RELATIVE TO THEIR 
ABILITY.

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



GCSE RELIGIOUS STUDIES FULL COURSE 2016 (Year 11)

Merthyr 
2016

Merthyr 
2015

Merthyr 
2014

Consortium
2016

Wales 
2016

A*-A 33.3% 30.2% 18.8% 29.1% 27.8%
A*-C 69.9% 74.1% 65.3% 69.2% 72.0%
A*- G 98.1% 98.6% 98.8% 96.9% 97.8%
Entry 
Number

156
4 schools
& EQTAS

25.4% cohort

139
4 schools

23.2%

170
4 schools

28.4%

4482
46.5%cohort

11,051
34.3%cohort

 There were 156 entries from 4 schools and EQTAS. Entry numbers are higher 
than 2015 but below 2014. All schools have entries in double figures. 

 The average cohort entry for Merthyr Tydfil in 2016 was 25.4% which is better 
than 2015(23.2%) but below 2014 (28.4%). Cohort entry is below Consortia and 
All Wales figures.

  
 The overall % of A*- A grades was 33.3% which is the best performance of the 

last 3 years. It is also better than Consortium (29.1) and All Wales (27.8%) 
figures.

 The overall % of A*- C grades was 69.9% and is below 2015 but better than 
2014. It is comparable with Consortium figure (69.2%) but below the All Wales 
figure of 72%.

 The overall % of A*-G grades was 98.1% and is comparable with previous 
performance and better than Consortium figure (96.9%) and All Wales figure of 
97.8%. 

GCSE RELIGIOUS EDUCATION SHORT COURSE 2016 (Year 11)

Merthyr 
2016

Merthyr 
2015

Merthyr 
2014

Consortium
2016

Wales 
2016

A*-A 18.7% 22.8% 20.4% 18.9% 11.4%
A*-C 52.0% 62.5% 69.6% 55.4% 45.4%
A*- G 94.1% 96.6% 98.9% 92.6% 90.5%
Entry 
Number

358
4 schools
& EQTAS

58.3% cohort

325
4 schools

54.3% cohort

270
3 schools

45.1% cohort

5848
60.7%

11,666
36.1%

 There was an increase in entries this year. 2 schools had entries in triple figures 
and thus enter a significant percentage of the cohort and pupils of all ability 
levels. Some schools enter pupils for two short courses and their performance 
has been reflected in the full course results. However, it is important to bear in 
mind that those pupils entered for two short courses will be mainly the more able 
and this will reflect on the A*-A and A*-C results for Short Course.

Page 8



 The average cohort entry for Merthyr Tydfil in 2016 was 58.3% and is higher than 
previous cohort entry figures. It was just below the Consortium entry figure of 
60.7% but much higher than the All Wales figure of 36.1% 

 The overall % of A*- A grades of 18.7% is below previous performance. It is 
comparable with the Consortium figure of 18.9% but better than All Wales figure 
of 11.4%.

 The overall % of A*- C grades was 52.0% and is below previous performance.  It 
is below the Consortium figure of 55.4% but better than the All Wales figure of 
45.4%.

 The overall % of A*-G grades was 94.1% and is below previous performance. It is 
better than the Consortium figure of 92.6% and the All Wales figure of 90.5%.

 A significant number continues to be entered for short course and this is very 
encouraging because it provides pupils with the opportunity for accreditation for 
their KS4 study. We must also bear in mind that pupils do not usually opt to follow 
the Short Course but it is delivered as part of the statutory requirements for RE. 

GCE RELIGIOUS STUDIES A LEVEL 2016

Merthyr 
College 

2016

Merthyr 
College 

2015

Merthyr 
2014

Consortium
2016

Wales 
2016

A*-A 11% 5% 20.69% 21.3% 19.0%
A*-C 79% 79% 75.86% 79.7% 79.0%
A*- E 100% 100% 96.55% 93.0% 99.0%
Entry 
Number

21 25 29
3 schools

586 1446

 There were 21 entries from the college and students studied Ethics and Human 
Experience at A2. The entry figures have slightly decreased this year. 

 A*-A was achieved by 11% of students and is better than 2015 performance but 
below the Consortium figure of 21.3% and the All Wales figure of 19%. 

 At A*-C candidates achieved a pass rate of 79% and is comparable with 2015 
and better than 2014 performance and is comparable with Consortia and All 
Wales figures. 

 The pass rate for grades A-E of 100% is excellent and maintains the excellent 
performance of 2015. It is better than the Consortia figure and All-Wales figures.

GCE RELIGIOUS STUDIES (AS LEVEL) 2016

Merthyr 
College 

2016

Merthyr 
College 

2015

Merthyr 
2014

Consortium
2016

Wales 
2016

A 23.5% 0% 0% 22.9% 16%
A – C 82% 68% 66.67% 73.3% 63%
A – E 100% 100% 100% 95.5% 89%
Entry 
Number

12 25 9
1 school

625 1535
12.7%

Page 9



 There were 12 entries from Merthyr College and numbers are down this year but 
better than 2014. Students studied Buddhism and Ethics at AS. 

 There were 23.5% of students achieving an A grade and this is the best 
performance of the last 3 years.  It is comparable with the Consortium figure and 
better than the All Wales figure of 16% 

 At A-C candidates achieved a pass rate of 82% which is better than previous 
performance and the Consortia figure of 73.3%.and the All Wales figure of 63%.

 The pass rate for grades A-E of 100% is excellent and comparable with previous 
excellent performance and better than the Consortium and all Wales figures. 

Page 10



1

Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council
SACRE

Key Stage 3: Year 9 Religious Education Levels
2015 and 2016

Please Note: 

Teacher assessment is not moderated externally. Teachers arrive at judgements for each pupil using 
assessment information gathered during the course of key stage 3. Exemplification material is made 
available to schools in order to moderate standards internally against the level description contained in 
the agreed syllabus. 

L5+  is the figure for those pupils gaining a level 5 or above in Religious Education
L6+  is the figure for those pupils gaining a level 6 or above in Religious Education
L7+  is the figure for those pupils gaining a level 7 or above in Religious Education
NL   means that no level was able to be awarded to those pupils

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 7



Key Stage 3     Year 9 Religious Education Levels Merthyr 2015

BOYS NOR Level 
1

Level 
2

Level 
3

Level 
4

Level 
5

Level 
6

Level 
7

Level 
8

EP No 
Level

Disapplied Total % L 
5+

% L 
6+

Total 
numbers 245 0 0 3 33 111 76 14 2 0 6 245 203 92
Percentages

0 0 1.2 13.5 45.3 31.0 5.7 0.8 0 2.4 100 82.9 37.6
Consortium

4041 0 30
0.7

130
3.2

537
13.3

1756
43.5

1244
30.8

289
7.2

25
0.6

0 25
0.6

5
0.1

4041
100

3314
82.0

1558
38.6

GIRLS NOR Level 
1

Level 
2

Level 
3

Level 
4

Level 
5

Level 
6

Level 
7

Level 
8

EP No 
Level

Disapplied Total % L 
5+

% L 
6+

Total 
numbers 215 0 0 3 15 81 91 23 0 0 2 215 195 114
Percentages

0 0 1.4 7.0 37.7 42.3 10.7 0 0 0.9 100 90.7 53.0

Consortium
3775 0 3

0.1
40
1.1

269
7.1

1199
31.8

1468
38.9

692
18.3

87
2.3

1
0

16
0.4

3775
100

3447
91.3

2248
59.5

ALL PUPILS NOR Level 
1

Level 
2

Level 
3

Level 
4

Level 
5

Level 
6

Level 
7

Level 
8

EP No 
Level

Disapplied Total % L 
5+

% L 
6+

Total 
numbers 460 0 0 6 48 192 167 37 2 0 8 460 398 206
Percentages

0 0 1.3 10.4 41.7 36.3 8.0 0.4 1.7 100 86.5 44.8
Consortium

7816
0 33

0.4
170
2.2

806
10.3

2955
37.8

2712
34.7

981
12.6

112
1.4

1
0.0

41
0.5

5
0.1

7816
100

6761
86.5

3806
48.7

P
age 12



Key Stage 3     Year 9 Religious Education Levels Merthyr 2016

BOYS NOR Level 
1

Level 
2

Level 
3

Level 
4

Level 
5

Level 
6

Level 
7

Level 
8

EP No 
Level

Dis
applied

Total %
 L 5+

% 
L 6+

% 
L 7+

Merthyr 
Percentages 252 0.0 0.0 0.8 8.7 52.0 29.0 8.3 0.4 0.0 0.8 0.0 100 89.7 37.7 8.7
Consortium

3833 0.0
0.1 1.8 11.0 42.4 32.0 10.6 0.8

0.1
0.8 0.4 100 85.9 43.5 11.5

GIRLS NOR Level 
1

Level 
2

Level 
3

Level 
4

Level 
5

Level 
6

Level 
7

Level 
8

EP No 
Level

Dis
applied

Total % 
L 5+

%
 L 6+

% 
L 7+

Merthyr
Percentages 220 0.0 0.0 0.0 7.3 35.9 36.4 19.1 1.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 100 92.7 56.8 20.5

Consortium
3494 0.0

0.1 0.8 5.4 30.2 37.6 22.5 2.7 0.1 0.5 100 93.1 62.9 25.4

ALL PUPILS NOR Level 
1

Level 
2

Level 
3

Level 
4

Level 
5

Level 
6

Level 
7

Level 
8

EP No 
Level

Dis
applied

Total % 
L 5+

%
 L 6+

% 
L 7+

Merthyr
Percentages 472 0.0 0.0 0.4 8.1 44.5 32.4 13.3 0.8 0.0 0.4 0.0 100 91.1 46.6 14.2
Consortium

7327
0.0

0.1 1.3 8.3 36.6 34.6 16.2 1.7 0.1 0.6 0.3 100 89.3 52.7 18.1

P
age 13



MERTHYR 2016
COMMENTARY ON LEVELS ANALYSIS AT KS3

 Results at L5+ for all pupils are 89.3% which shows a year on year improvement with 86.5% (2015) and 79.3% (2014)). The results for 
boys only in 2016 (89.7%) are better than 2015 (82.9%) and for girls only their results have improved by approx 2%. The gap in 
performance between boys and girls has narrowed again this year with it being 3% and 8% (2015) and 16% (2014). The results at L5+ 
in 2016 are better than Consortium figures for Boys, comparable with Consortium figures with girls and better than Consortium figures 
for All Pupils. 

 Results at all L6+ for pupils are 46.6% and this again shows a year on year improvement in performance with 44.8% (2015) 25.8% 
(2014).  Boys’ performance at 37.7% is comparable with 2015 (37.6%) and girls’ performance has also improved by approx 4%. The 
gap in performance between boys and girls has increased this year to 19% at L6+ compared to 16% (2015) and 18% (2014). The 
results overall are below the Consortium figures for Boys / Girls and All Pupils. 

Gender differences in RE
2016 2015 2014

L5+ 3% 8% 16%
L6+ 19% 16% 18%
L7+ 12%

This shows that girls do better than boys particularly at the higher levels in RE.

P
age 14



MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO: STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR RELIGIOUS 
EDUCATION

DATE: MARCH 7th 2017

SUBJECT:               GCSE CONSORTIA ARRANGEMENTS/ SPECIFICATIONS 

SACRE has been regularly updated on progress with regard to the revised specifications 
for GCSE and A/AS Level examination courses. 

The A/AS approved specifications, training programme and courses already being taught 
from September 2016. 

The GCSE level specifications have been approved and in place for first teaching from 
September 2017. 

WJEC free CPD training days
 Monday 06 February 2017, 9:30 am - 3:30 pm- Carmarthen  - low availability
 Tuesday 07 February 2017, 9:30 am - 3:30 pm -  Cardiff - low availability
 Wednesday 15 February 2017, 9:30 am - 3:30 pm –  Bangor
 Thursday 16 February 2017, 9:30 am - 3:30 pm – Mold 

WJEC GCSE Religious Studies Route A and B Preparing to Teach 
(Wales Centres Only)
Course Aims:
This full day course is designed for teachers who are preparing to teach the WJEC GCSE 
Religious Studies spec A and B for first teaching from September 2017. Each session will look in-
depth at the new specification including its assessment objectives, examination structure and other 
key areas and review sample assessment materials. It will also show how supporting resources 
may be used to help you teach the new qualification.

Outcomes for delegates:
• Gain an understanding of the content and assessment requirements of the new specification, 
including key reforms that need to be addressed.

• Support planning for teaching and understand the implications of reforms on pedagogy.

• An opportunity to view new resources and those in development to support teaching and learning 
and gain practical ideas on how these may be used in the classroom.

• An opportunity to network with colleagues and subject specification specialists.

You will also be provided with a comprehensive pack of materials which you can take away with 
you and share with colleagues.

Course Personnel:
The course is led by subject specialists who have in-depth experience and knowledge of the 
content. They will be subject officers, specification developers, examiners or moderators with a 
wealth of experience in this field.

Course Costs:
FREE (including refreshments and course materials).
• Due to anticipated popularity, places are limited to one delegate per centre. 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 8



GCSE Support programme

ERW Consortia
Tonia Antoniazzi (ERW )leader of learning for Non Core Subjects for GCSE. She 
informed WASACRE of the work ERW are doing to support RS at GCSE level.

She has a team of teachers/lead practitioners who will support her in sharing and 
developing good practice. The work from ERW is intended to be collected by end of June.  
The good practice will be shared through HWB. The intention is for a collaborative 
approach between WJEC and the Consortia. Currently discussions are ongoing with 
WJEC Subject Officers about resource development. 

Process
Schools will celebrate and share their work through HWB. There will be a need to sign in 
as an approved member to access HWB.  Every school in Wales can access HWB.  The 
intention is tie in with other consortia to share good practice and materials.

Central South Consortia (CSC)

CSC contact: Cathryn Billington-Richards/ Area Lead: lead practitioners, language, 
literacy and communication

Curriculum Lead Practitioners for RE to provide support for non-core WJEC GCSE 
subjects first teaching September 2017

 Catherine Rees/ O’Brien, Pencoed Comprehensive School
 Lisa James, Cardiff High School

They will be working with the ERW practitioners along with those in EAS and GWE. One 
of the roles of the Hub lead will be to run HODs network meetings to share good practice 
and develop an understanding of the new specifications. 

A subject leader network meeting was held on January 26th to look at  developing 
collaboration between schools for the new specification. 

The lead practitioners are also developing resources for the new GCSE which will be 
shared via hwb

Recommendation 

SACRE to note and discuss the developments relating to the support for schools with the 
revised specifications for GCSE 

If possible the curriculum lead/s will be invited to address SACRE on their work.

 

Page 16



MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO: STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR RELIGIOUS 
EDUCATION

DATE: MARCH 7th 2017

SUBJECT:                  NATIONAL CURRICULUM REVIEW UPDATE  

Update: Curriculum Review 

WASACRE representatives namely Phil Lord, Libby Jones and Gill Vaisey have 
represented WASACRE at regular Stakeholders’ meetings with Welsh Government to 
discuss the new curriculum.  

The National Advisory Panel for RE (NAPfRE) has drawn up a draft document outlining 
some guidelines on What makes good RE for WASACRE representatives to submit to the 
pioneer network for consideration when working on the shape of the RE curriculum. This 
has been submitted to Manon Jones* of Welsh Government for information to be shared 
at some point with the pioneer schools working on the Humanities AOLE.

Strand 2: Subject specific design and developing the Areas of Learning and Experience.  
Representatives from the pioneer schools will consider the strands within each area of 
learning and experience.  This is where the in depth subject specific knowledge will be 
required. 

Time scale

 Pioneer School launch 17/1/17
 Humanities AOLE meeting with Manon Jones 18/1/17
 Pioneer schools will meet to discuss the way forward with their AoLE in February/ 

March 2017.
 The first expected output is expected to be a set of principles which demonstrate 

how the Humanities AoLE links with the 4 purposes.
 The second output is likely to be the specifics and detail of the AoLE
 The third output is likely to be when separate disciples work alone or together- 

perhaps forming sub groups or focus groups.

WASACRE have a meeting with The Minister for Education (Kirsty Williams)on 2nd 
March 2017 and will pose a question around the status of the Agreed Syllabus in the light 
of the proposal that RE becomes part of the Humanities AoLE. 

Recommendation 

SACRE to note and discuss the developments relating to the position of RE in the 
curriculum  

*Manon Jones (Curriculum Division of Welsh Government) is responsible for the pioneer schools 
and two areas of learning and experience (AOLE), Humanities and Language and Literacy

Page 17

Agenda Item 9



Curriculum for Wales Newsletter

January 2017 (Issue 04) 

(This is the latest edition of WG stakeholder newsletter)

 Momentum is growing in the development of a new curriculum for Wales. The ‘big 
questions’ in curriculum design have been considered by Pioneer Schools in the Strategic 
Design (Strand 1) groups, and 25 new Pioneer Schools joined the network this month to 
help with the next phase of development. 

The findings from the Strategic Design groups will now inform the design and 
development of the Areas of Learning and Experience (AoLEs, Strand 2). AoLE groups 
were announced recently, and membership of each group features below. 

Welsh Government, Regional Education Consortia, Estyn and practitioners continue to 
work closely in partnership as the work evolves. Working groups are co-facilitated and 
representation in all areas is comprehensive in a true ‘Team Wales’ approach.

In this newsletter you will find updates on: 
 

 Strategic Design Group (Strand 1) activity – summaries
 Cross-Curriculum Responsibilities 
 Enrichment and Experiences o 
 Welsh Dimension, International Perspectives and Wider Skills 
 Assessment and Progression  
 Area of Learning and Experience (AoLE – Strand 2) groups starting work at 

Llandudno event  
 New Pioneer Schools joining the fold  
 Curriculum for Wales Blog

Area of Learning and Experience (AoLE) groups start work at Llandudno event 

Two days of discussion and workshops in Llandudno on 17th/18th January kickstarted 
work on the Areas of Learning and Experience. Coming together for the first time, the six 
groups included 25 new Pioneer schools to help create the new curriculum for Wales. 

After awareness sessions on strategic design work to date, the groups looked at the 
essence of an ‘AoLE’ and approaches to developing them. They set out work plans and 
building blocks for the coming term, with a view to developing AoLE frameworks by June 
2017. 

The six AoLEs are: Expressive Arts; Health and Well-Being; Humanities; Languages, 
Literacy and Communication; Mathematics and Numeracy, and Science and Technology. 

Page 18



Schools working on the ‘Humanities’ Area of Learning and Experience

Ysgol // School

Consortia 
Rhanbarthol // 
Regional Consortia

Ysgol Uwchradd Gatholig Yr Esgob Hedley 
Bishop Hedley Catholic High School CCD/CSC

Ysgol Gynradd Parc Darran Park Primary School 
CCD/CSC

Ysgol Gyfun Maesteg Comprehensive School CCD/CSC

Ysgol Gyfun Pontardulais Comprehensive School 
ERW

Ysgol Gynradd Rhydypenau Primary School CCD/CSC
Ysgol Gynradd Trellech Primary School GCA/EAS
Ysgol Uwchradd Bodedern GWE
Ysgol y Preseli ERW

Ysgol Gyfun Bryntawe  (partnered with Ysgol Gyffun Gwyr)
ERW

Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg Lôn Las (;partnered with Ysgol 
Bryniago) ERW
Ysgol Bro Sannan                                                                          
Ysgol Gynradd Cwmbran                                                   
Ysgol Gyfun Caldicot Comprehensive School GCA/EAS
Ysgol Uwchradd Penfro /
Pembroke High School ERW
Ysgol Gynradd Gatholig Rufeinig San Joseff 
St Joseph’s RC Primary, Penarth CCD/CSC
Ysgol David Hughes GWE
Ysgol Penboyr, Llandysul ERW
Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Bro Myrddin ERW

. 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO: STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR RELIGIOUS 
EDUCATION

DATE: MARCH 7th 2017

SUBJECT:                 THE ANNUAL ESTYN REMIT 2017/18

The Annual Estyn Remit 2017/18

This document sets out the Cabinet Secretary for Education’s annual remit to Estyn for 
2017/18. The annual remit is additional to Estyn’s core business of inspections. It sets 
out: 

1. The specific advice required by the Welsh Government in 2017/18 which includes: 

a) Issues where Estyn is asked to provide detailed reports and, where 
appropriate, other resources drawing on evidence from thematic inspections;

 b) Working groups that Estyn is asked to support; 

c) Other areas where the Welsh Government may request advice and support; 
and 

d) Follow up activity on the inspection of the regional education consortia for 
school improvement which took place in 2016. 

2. An indicative forward look at advice likely to be required by the Welsh Government 
in 2018/19.

(See page 4: item 4 for RE specifics)

4.  Religious and moral 
education at key stage 2 
and key stage 3.

This report is part of a 
series of reports on 
curriculum subject areas. 
It will build on the 2013 
report on Religious 
Education in key stage 4

Year 1 of 1 Standard 
review 

Page 21

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
Cyfarfod Cymdeithas CYSAG au Cymru,  
Wales Association of SACREs meeting, Carmarthenshire 
 
 
 
 
Attendance 

 
 
 

Ynys Môn / Anglesey 
Bethan James 
Rheinallt A. Thomas 
 
Blaenau Gwent 
Gill Vaisey 
 
Pen-y-bontar Ogwr / 
Bridgend 
Edward Evans 
Vicky Thomas  
 
Caerffili/ Caerphilly 
Vicky Thomas  
John Taylor 
Enfys Hawthorn 
Janet Jones 
 
Caerdydd / Cardiff 
Gill Vaisey 
Janet Jones 
 
Sir Gaerfyrddin / 
Carmarthenshire  
Mary Parry 
 
Ceredigion 
Alwen Roberts 
 
Conwy 
Phil Lord 
Nicholas Richter 

Sir Ddinbych / Denbighshire 
Phil Lord 
 
Sir y Fflint / Flintshire 
Phil Lord 
 
Gwynedd 
Bethan James 
 
Merthyr Tudful / Merthyr 
Tydfil 
Vicky Thomas  
 
Sir Fynwy / Monmouthshire 
Gill Vaisey 
 
Castell-nedd Port Talbot / 
Neath and Port Talbot 
 
Casnewydd / Newport 
Vicky Thomas  
Huw Stephens 
 
Sir Benfro / 
Pembrokeshire 
Mary Parry 
 
 

Powys 
John Mitson 
Margaret Evitts 
 
Rhondda Cynon Taf 
Paula Webber 
Mathew Maidment 
 
Abertawe / Swansea 
Vicky Thomas  
Brinley Jones 
Alison Lewis 
 
Torfaen /Torfaen 
Vicky Thomas 
Daniel Foster  
 
 
Bro Morgannwg / 
Vale of Glamorgan 
Paula Webber 
Dafydd Treharne 
 
Wrecsam / Wrexham 
Samantha Jesson 
Ruth Holden 
 
Sylwedyddion / 
Observers 
Emlyn Doyle (Cyngor Sir Fâr?) 
Tudor Thomas (REMW) 
Kathy Riddick (Wales Humanists) 
Vaughan Salisbury (CYSAG 
Ceredigion) 
Jean Lewis (Cyngor Sir Gâr 
CYSAG CAERFYRDDIN) 
Gwyneth Thomas (Cyngor Sir Gâr 
CYSAG CAERFYRDDIN) 
 
 
 

Page 23

Agenda Item 12



 

Minutes 
 
1.  Introduction and welcome   
 
 Chair of WASACRE, Phil Lord, welcomed members to Carmarthenshire.  The Leader of 
 the Council, Emlyn Doyle, welcomed WASACRE to the Council Chamber. Members 
 enjoyed the performance of the choir from Ysgol Gynradd Llangennech. Emlyn Doyle 
 shared his support for SACREs and recognised the importance of WASACRE and of RE 
 in Wales in a climate of educational change. He acknowledged that Carmarthenshire takes 
 RE seriously and ensures a holistic education, which aims to develop empathy, tolerance 
 and respect. As such it employs a Challenge Advisor to provide training and practical help 
 to implement effective RE. 
 
2. Quiet reflection 
 
 PL led a reflection, asking members to consider the need to work towards unity within 
 communities. RE is in a position to remind people of this responsibility. 
 
3.  Apologies 
 
 Libby Jones, Jen Malcom, Tania ap Sion, Leslie Francis, Ernie Galsworthy, Sally Northcott 
 
4.  NAPfRE presentation 
 
 Headteacher, Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Myrddin presented on collective worship in the 
 secondary school. Assemblies are organised so that all pupils have the opportunity to 
 participate in and deliver a daily act of collective worship. They share ideas and celebrate 
 success as well as reflect. During questions the Headteacher was thanked by a 
 WASACRE member who had previously been a teacher at the school. PL expressed 
 WASACREs thanks and reflected that newly built secondary schools have no communal 
 space and would, therefore, find it difficult to develop a sense of community via bringing all 
 pupils in a school together.  
 
 Comments included the positive contribution collective Worship could make to a pupil’s 
 experience in a secondary school and the good practice that could be shared from the 
 presentation provided by Bro Myrddin. 
 
5. Minutes of meeting held in Rhyl, 23 June 2016 

 The minutes were accepted as a true record of the meeting. Proposed by Huw Stephens 
 and seconded by Edward Evans. 
 
6. Matters Arising.   

 
VT said the new GCSE had been approved and was on WJEC website. She informed 
WASACRE that concerns had been raised at SACREs that there were training issues as 
there was an increase in content and more emphasis on textual concepts. Dan Foster – 
Head teacher representing Torfaen SACRE expressed concern that the cost of training by 
the WJEC has risen rapidly. Schools are finding this difficult because of financial 
constraints. Tudor Thomas agreed but said that training for new specifications was free. 
He said schools are on tight budgets and that representation is needed to WJEC 
suggesting that it carries a responsibility for schools in Wales in particular as it is the sole 
Examination Board in Wales. The WJEC are offering one free training place for all schools 
on four dates during this academic year.   

 ACTION: PL agreed to find the link to RE Ideas on the Peniarth website.  Copies going 
 back as far as 2000 have been made available by REMW. Every SACRE Clarke should 
 have a copy of the list of RE Ideas publications to share with SACREs. 

Page 24



 

 P 4. Item 4. The reply was sent to Lynda and LJ maintained email contact with WJEC 
 regarding this issue. However, the letter to QW was not sent due to the Specification being 
 accredited during the Autumn term. 
 
 P4. Item 5 Humanists on SACRE – Kathy Riddick from Humanists Wales has been 
 invited to attend the Carmarthenshire meeting following a letter she sent to WASACRE 
 highlighting this issue. 
 
 P5: Item 5 – Incerts: GV informed members that LJ had requested a statement from 
 Welsh Government that we could use to inform Incerts that the level descriptions 
 contained within agreed syllabuses are statutory.  However, the response from Welsh 
 Government did not address the original question. NAPfRE suggest we should go back to 
 the original legislation which states that the Agreed Syllabuses are statutory and, 
 therefore, the Levels within them are statutory.  Rheinallt Thomas said officers in the 
 Assembly are aware that it is the right of every SACRE to adopt the National Framework, 
 but that this can only be done legally at a local level by individual SACREs, not at a 
 national level.  He also said Welsh Government must go forward carefully if RE is placed 
 within humanities as RE has to be determined locally.  GV proposed that WASACRE 
 should make a second request to WG for a statement on the status of an agreed syllabus.    
 
 P6.  Welsh Baccalaureate – A discussion was held on the consequences of not 
 delivering statutory RE, which isn’t just an issue at Key Stage 4. There is a local 
 responsibility to ensure the Agreed Syllabus is being implemented. It was noted that some 
 Pioneer Schools are confused as to the status of the Agreed Syllabus.  WASACRE were 
 told that this was discussed at the NAPfRE meeting.  Some SACREs intend to write to 
 schools reminding them of the obligation to follow the Agreed Syllabus. It was felt that 
 there should be a consistent message sent out by SACREs across Wales.  
 
 Action: VT has written letters from her SACREs to schools reminding them of their 
 statutory requirements and has agreed to share this with NAPfRE members so that 
 they and their SACREs can consider whether to they should write something similar 
 to their schools.  
 
 GV raised the issue that only 70 responses were received to the Welsh Bacc Survey and 
 asked whether WASACRE would follow this up to get a fuller picture. Monmouthshire 
 SACRE felt it worthwhile to get broader picture of what is happening across Wales, 
 expressing concern about schools that had not responded to the survey.   Dan Foster 
 asked whether a misunderstanding of the statutory nature of an agreed syllabus could 
 mean that Pioneer Schools could be acting illegally. The letters from SACREs would help 
 in reminding them of the statutory nature of the Agreed Syllabus. Local Authority Officers 
 sit on SACRE and they should be the link to schools. A teacher representative said that he 
 is aware that one school in his LA is not complying with its statutory obligation for RE 
 because of the Welsh Baccalaureate. This could be a slippery slope and SACREs have to 
 act on it. PL reminded members that they have been advised by Welsh Government of the 
 process for dealing with schools that are not complying and that SACREs should be 
 following that. Tudor Thomas raised concern that due to the changes in GCSE 
 specifications, the content has become heavier and that is worrying for the RE community 
 in Wales as schools may now only deliver token RE.   
 
 It was agreed that WASACRE would not re-send the survey to schools but that each 
 SACRE should follow-up with their own schools and feedback to WASACRE.  MM 
 suggested that SACREs should try to ensure that the survey goes directly to heads of 
 department and not the school secretary or the headteacher.  
 
7. Presentation - Support for schools in delivering the new GCSE specification for 

Religious Studies and the role of Lead Practitioners 
 
 Presented by Tonia Antinarzi who is seconded to ERW as Leader of Learning of Non-Core 
 subjects. Tonia’s responsibility is to work with lead practitioners to establish networks and 
 to establish support for the non core subjects. Lead practitioners for RE have set up in 

Page 25



 

 each of the regions.  They are working to create resources to support the implementation 
 of the new WJEC GCSE and are beginning to share information and resources via Hwb. 
 Resources will be translated into Welsh and Quality Assured. Lead practitioners are keen 
 to hear from classroom teachers who would like to work together to create resources. A 
 SACRE rep raised concerns that increased content of the new specification could mean 
 that that grades may not be as high if they are expected to deliver GCSE Religious 
 Studies in an hour a week. VT asked whether there was an intention to share resources 
 wider to other consortia. Tonia affirmed this and said that links are already being made 
 with EAS in Newport. Alison Lewis, a Lead Practitioner, highlighted the difficulty in getting 
 schools to use Hwb but said that the resources are there if they want access them.  Tonia 
 said that the launch of Lead Practitioners was on 21

st
 Oct and they have already made a 

 lot of progress. A member asked if there had been involvement from SACREs in this 
 process. Tonia confirmed this and is interested in hearing from schools with strong RE 
 departments, especially Welsh language schools. Tania will share the details of the lead 
 practitioners for RE with WASACRE. Lead practitioners have written to all schools in the 
 area to draw attention to the work they are doing. They are conducting a survey to map 
 strengths.  
 
 BJ said that lead practitioners in North Wales have been getting organised and preparing 
 resources. She asked whether they are doubling up on the work in Wales and whether 
 they would benefit from working with colleagues across Wales. Tonia said that she sees 
 her job as coordinating links with other consortia. A member asked who would be Quality 
 Assuring.  Tonia said that whilst the WJEC can’t endorse the work they were able to check 
 that they were on the right track. They would also be using teachers in the area and Mary 
 Parry as the Advisor.  Everything should be ready by the end of June. Tonia will follow up 
 those who aren’t involved. MM asked when the GCSE books would be made available. He 
 highlighted the issue that the books only cover 3 religions Christianity, Judaism and Islam.   
 
 VT agreed that there was an issue that there are no resources for Eastern Religions.  
 Tonia said that the whole course was being mapped out and that it has covered all 
 religions.  PL said that there will be a presentation from a lead practitioner in summer 
 WASACRE meeting and we look forward to an update and the end of the process. 
 
8. Updates: 
 
 Update: Curriculum Review – BJ said that many of the schools are trying to imagine 
 what the Donaldson Curriculum will look like. Pioneer schools are hoping that by January 
 Step 2 will begin and they will develop models for their Areas of Learning and Experience 
 across Wales. BJ informed WASACRE that Phil Lord, Libby Jones and Gill Vaisey had 
 represented WASACRE at regular Stakeholders’ meetings with Welsh Government to 
 discuss the new curriculum.  There is also a meeting to be held with officers of the Welsh 
 Government on 14

th
 December. The role of WASACRE in the curriculum review process 

 will be discussed.  
 
 A member highlighted a concern about the slow progress in the development of the new 
 curriculum and said that Welsh Government has not given any suggestion of what the 
 curriculum will look like.  It was brought to the attention of WASACRE that some schools 
 are under impression they don’t have to follow the Agreed Syllabus. BJ also raised the 
 issue of lack of time for teacher training on what good RE is.  This is especially important 
 to non-specialists. BJ suggested that we need to scrutinise the contribution of the pioneer 
 schools and would welcome having an input into that. NAPfRE are preparing a document 
 entitled “What is Good RE” to share with schools and are meeting before the end of term 
 to finish this. Members of WASACRE are informed of the progress of the new curriculum 
 and regularly feed back to members.   
 
 WASACRE have had correspondence from Carmarthenshire SACRE raising concerns 
 about what RE will look like in the new curriculum and what the role of SACRE will be.  
  
 

Page 26



 

 WASACRE have a meeting with The Minister for Education on 2
nd

 March 2017 and will 
 pose a question around the status of the Agreed Syllabus.  
  
 A member spoke about the concerns of the Presbyterian Church about the uncertainty of 
 what is happening. They have sent a letter to Carmarthenshire SACRE and WASACRE as 
 well as to Kirsty Williams because they are concerned about how Christianity will be taught 
 in the new curriculum.  RT suggested that Church Schools might find it difficult to become 
 part of this curriculum and that the Church in Wales and the Roman Catholic Church 
 should use its links to the Welsh Government to discuss this. 
 
 PL asked how RE would work if it is based in the humanities curriculum and suggested 
 that it is important to keep a watching brief on that.  
 
 Update: Guidance on Managing the Right of Withdrawal from Religious Education. 
 GV said that the document is now out for consultation with a variety of organisations, faith 
 representatives and educationalists.  She is delighted with the support and positive tone in 
 which the document is being received.  The document was initially produced in response 
 to a headteacher, but the document has evolved and is now for parents, teachers and all 
 parties. GV shared the document with colleagues in England at the REC Conference and 
 there had been lots of interest.  The document will go to a graphic designer for 
 professional design and printing. Translation is needed but it should be available in the 
 Summer Term. 
 
 Update on REC 
 
 GV said that Rudy Lockhart, CEO of REC, has been actively talking to MPs to ensure they 
 understand what RE is.  REC reps attended Party Political Conferences for the Labour 
 and Conservative Parties to raise the profile of RE and to build good relationships with 
 MPs.  It was suggested that local SACREs should be informing their local politicians about 
 standards achieved in GCSE locally as this is something they will care about.  
 REQM have a new manager, Linda Rudge. 
  There is a minimum subscription for REC of £250 but the average being given is £370. 
 There was a presentation on new resources at the conference.   

 
1. Understanding Christianity Project: The National Society aim to raise standards in the 

teaching of Christianity following a survey which highlighted inadequacies. A resource 
and two day training package has been created for teachers who will be provided the 
pack of resources at the end of the course.  They are training people to deliver the 
courses and GV will be attending.   

 
2. Understanding Humanism: The Humanist Association has created a website with 

excellent resources for moral and social education as well as RE. They are hoping to 
translate all resources into Welsh. 

 
3. The Board of Deputies of British Jews has produced a book to support Judaism 
 GCSE Religious Studies: The Definitive Resource by Clive Lawton to help 
 teachers with the quality of education on Judaism. 

 Update: EFTRE – PL attended the conference in August.  The conference discussed what 
 RE looks like across Europe and most countries take a confessional approach. There was 
 discussion about how students are seen as commodities for economic growth with 
 documentation from systems across Europe showing a move away from wellbeing and 
 holistic and spiritual approaches.  
 PL will attend the Exec meeting of EFTRE next week in Finland. 
 
 Update: Welsh Government contact meeting - WASACRE are keeping in contact with 
 WG via regular meetings. The next meeting is in December.  Discussions have included 
 10/94 and the Agreed Syllabus.  There has also been discussion on the Welsh Bacc and 
 the new curriculum.   
 

Page 27



 

 Annual reports issue – This issue is still unresolved and WASACRE will be pushing for 
 WG to maintain its current responsibility to collate the reports as per 10/94. WASACRE will 
 be kept up-dated on progress. 
 
9. Report from the Executive Committee 
 
 Minutes from meeting –  
 P1 Action 1 - Letter to Kirsty Williams. 
 Edward Evans has written to Welsh Government to ask whether changing the law with 
 regards to Religious Education in England would have an impact in Wales.  – What are the 
 residual powers of Westminster? The response received did not adequately address the 
 question and he would therefore write again, this time directly to Kirsty Williams.  
 REC subscription – PL advised that as a small organisation WASACRE was entitled to 
 pay a reduced subscription to REC and this would be £99. 
 
 Lead Practitioners - There will be a presentation updating us on the work done in the 
 Summer meeting. 
 
 PL said that WASACRE is pleased to see John Mitson is still able to attend and that 
 WASACRE will still draw upon his skills. 
 
 The next Executive is meeting next on the 1

st
 Feb. 

 
10.  Correspondence 

 
1.  Letter from Neeter Baicher – about the book Unsung by Dr Darminder Singh Chada 

raising awareness and paying tribute to the Sikh soldiers to the British Empire. 
 

2. Kirsty Williams, Cabinet Secretary of Education agreed to a meeting with WASACRE 
on  Thursday 2

nd
 March, 2017 as a result of the request for a meeting LJ sent.  

 
3. Pam Evans, CEO of Peace Mala, wrote informing WASACRE about the Peace Mala 

at Llandaff Cathedral on Thursday 20
th
 July, 2017 

 
4. Correspondence with Kathy Riddick, Development Officer, Wales Humanists 

discussing the place of Humanists in SACRE.  Kathy Riddick was invited to attend 
WASACRE as an observer in order to begin a positive dialogue between the two 
associations. Kathy was in attendance in the meeting and explained that the 
Humanist Society wanted non-religious views represented alongside religious views 
as well as a positive relationship with SACREs.  Kathy informed WASACRE that the 
Humanist Society has school speakers available across Wales.  Edward Evans said 
that a Humanist had faithfully attended and made a valuable contribution to Bridgend 
SACRE for number of years. However, he reminded WASACRE that we are bound 
by circular 10/94 and therefore, non-religious belief systems can only be co-opted 
members and this is still the legal position. PL said that this is an issue for Welsh 
Government.  Kathy Riddick said that the Humanist Society has written to Welsh 
Government on this issue.  

11.  A.O.B. 
 
 Tania and Leslie have published materials on the St Mary’s Website and reminded 
 WASACRE of the A Level journal So far there have been 10 issues with over 40 articles 
 published.  There are two new Foundation Phase resources available for free from the St 
 Mary’s Centre website.  The ‘Exploring Why’ series and ‘Exploring Our World’ series are 
 available from http://www.st-marys-centre.org.uk/resoruces 
 
 A Level resources for the new curriculum -MP raised the issue of this need, suggesting 
 that we might seek funding for lead teachers to create resources to share in the same way 
 lead practitioners are working on resources for GCSE. She suggested WASACRE and/or 
 the REMW might consider funding this work. TT suggested that the WJEC have a role to 

Page 28

http://www.st-marys-centre.org.uk/resoruces


 

 play in this.  He said that there are textbooks available written by chief examiners. The 
 WJEC is a benefactor and they need to benefit from it and could perhaps act as a 
 coordinator. BJ said that there are new GCSE and A level and groups working together 
 voluntarily.  She would be interested in other groups working together in a more formal 
 sense providing a network of sharing good practice who are able to produce resources 
 which is fully endorsed by WJEC.  Someone would need to manage this. PL asked who 
 their employer would be. A member suggested using the Hwb to share resources. It was 
 suggested that two or three teachers could coordinate it.  JM discussed the financial 
 issues and suggested that it would be difficult for WASACRE to fund this alone and would 
 need to work with others.  GV suggested asking REMW if they could also provide some 
 funding and that we might also think about asking other organisations to help.  RT said the 
 residual balances of REMW do not match that of WASACRE but that this could be 
 discussed in the next meeting of REMW.  
 
 TT felt strongly that as the WJEC is a profit making organisation and it is their product that 
 they should be key players.  
 
 WASACRE voted that it would like to see this investigated further as speed is of the 
 essence.   
 
 WASACRE minutes – RT brought it to the attention of WASACRE that old WASACRE 
 minutes are not stored on the website.  He suggested that it is important that the reports of 
 the previous conferences are on the website and that with modern technology it would be 
 easy to do this. Action: PL is to look into is situation.  
 
 PL informed WASACRE that Jen Malcom is retiring. He thanked her for her contribution to 
 WASACRE and expressed best wishes for her retirement and for the future. 
 
12.   Date for next meeting:  3

rd
 March 2017, Monmouthshire. Venue:  County Hall, Usk.  

 
 Future meeting dates: 

 Summer 2017, Wrexham 

 Autumn 2017, Bridgend 

 Spring 2018, Swansea 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29



 

MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

REPORT TO:  STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR RELIGIOUS  
   EDUCATION 
 
DATE:   MARCH 7th 2017 
  
SUBJECT:        EXECUTIVE VOTING  
 
There will be two vacancies on the WASACRE Executive Committee at the AGM to fill. 
(Vicky Thomas and Gill Vaisey have finished their term of office). 
 
Chair 
Phil Lord has completed his two years as Chair.  Edward Evans will become Chair at the 
AGM. 
 
 Vice Chair 
The position of Vice Chair of WASACRE is vacant 
 
Please note  
 
If your SACRE is already represented on the Executive committee, with the exception of 
Secretary, Assistant Secretary and Treasurer, according to the WASACRE Constitution 
you will not be able to nominate a person from your own SACRE at this time. 
 
Ernie Galsworthy is the Merthyr representative on WASACRE Executive and 
therefore Merthyr SACRE will not be able to nominate for the Executive places.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 30



 

 

 
                                                                    
Cadeirydd/Chairman:  
Philip Lord 
 
Ysgrifennydd/Secretary:  
 Paula Webber 
 23, Bryngwyn Road, Newbridge, NP11 4GX 
                 
                        
e-bost/e-mail: Paula.WebberConsultancy@gmail.com 

       ffôn/ tel : 07540 172596 
 
23 January 2017  
 
Dear Clerk to SACRE, 
 
Following our normal annual process, I am writing to invite SACREs to make nominations 
for new members of the WASACRE Executive Committee and for the position of Vice 
Chair. Please would your SACRE discuss any nomination that they wish to make at their 
spring term SACRE meeting. Please note that if your SACRE is already represented on 
the Executive committee, with the exception of Secretary, Assistant Secretary and 
Treasurer, according to the WASACRE Constitution you will not be able to nominate a 
person from your own SACRE at this time. 
 
Please find attached a proforma that should be completed and returned to me at the 
above email/postal address by Friday 31 March 2017.  I will send to you the list of the 
nominations before Friday 28 April 2017, so that your SACRE is able to discuss them in 
their summer term meeting in time for the vote at the Association’s AGM in July.  
 
Please note there is an expectation that nominees will be available to attend executive 
meetings regularly should they be successful in the election at the AGM in July. 
 
We would like to thank you and your members for your assistance in this matter. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 

 
Paula Webber 
Secretary to WASACRE  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 31

mailto:Paula.WebberConsultancy@gmail.com


This page is intentionally left blank



             

 

 

 

 

Estyn, Llys Angor/Anchor Court, Heol Keen/Keen Road, Caerdydd/Cardiff, CF24 5JW 

Ffôn/Telephone 02920 446446 

ymholiadau@estyn.llyw.cymru • enquiries@estyn.gov.wales 

www.estyn.llyw.cymru • www.estyn.gov.wales 

 

Vicky Thomas 
Independent RE Consultant  

 
 

25 November 2016 
 
Dear Ms Thomas 
 
Monitoring visit:  Twynyrodyn Primary School 
 
Thank you for your letter outlining your concerns about the monitoring visit of 
Twynyrodyn Primary School.  I have been asked to investigate.   
 
As part of my investigation, I have reviewed relevant documentation and have 
spoken to Mr Andrew Thorne (HMI) and Mrs Jane McCarthy (HMI and lead inspector 
on the monitoring visit).     
 
I am sorry that the information you have received from the school about Estyn’s 
inspection of progress in relation to one recommendation has caused concern.  
However, as the information was gained through a source not present during 
inspection activity, it has been difficult to ascertain the exact comments made at the 
time.   
 
In your letter, you make comments that Mr Thorne criticised the school for an over 
reliance on members of the clergy and that during the core inspection in 2015 that 
there was a criticism made that there was little use of the clergy.  I have considered 
carefully the evidence bases from the core inspection and the follow up visit.  There 
is no evidence to suggest that the teams criticised the use of members of the clergy 
for collective worship.  In my discussions with Mr Thorne, he states that he did not 
criticise the school’s use of the clergy and he comments about the effectiveness of 
visitors from the local church in the main evaluation.  The main evaluation provided 
to the school states ‘Visitors from the local church provide enriching opportunities 
that teach pupils about important religious festivals well.’ 
 
It is impossible for me to confirm that the team used comments to suggest that there 
was an over reliance on members of the clergy.  However, although I am unable to 
confirm this, the main evaluation confirms that the team found the use of members of 
the local church to be effective in providing enriching opportunities for pupils during 
collective worship.   
 

Page 33

Agenda Item 13



                                                                   

 

 

 

 

 
In your letter, you correctly state that Estyn guidance and the law states that most 
acts of collective worship should be wholly or mainly of a Christian character.  In 
discussion with Mr Thorne, he states that during an interview with the headteacher 
regarding progress against the recommendation, there was a discussion on the 
difference between holding assemblies and collective worship.  As part of this 
discussion, Mr Thorne remembers the headteacher being unsure about the 
differences between these and that Mr Thorne shared the Estyn guidance with the 
headteacher using the exact wording contained in the guidance to clarify the 
differences.  He states that by the end of this interview, the headteacher had a 
clearer understanding of the differences.   
 
Mr Thorne states that he did not say that every act of collective worship should have 
a Bible story.   
 
In your letter, you state that you would agree that sometimes hymn practice cannot 
completely fulfil the requirements of an act of collective worship.  You also state that 
the school assures you that every hymn practice includes a story and a prayer with 
an opportunity for reflection.   
 
From my investigation of the evidence and discussions with Mr Thorne, the team 
observed a Foundation Phase hymn practice during the monitoring visit.  During this 
observation, although there was a short prayer at the end of the singing practice, 
there was no opportunity for pupils to reflect.  There was also no story shared with 
pupils as part of this hymn practice.   
 
However, I do agree that our guidance says that ‘An act of collective worship may 
incorporate a song’.  Therefore, the session observed would have met with the 
statutory requirements for collective worship.  This was only part of the evidence 
collected in regards to this recommendation and was part of the evidence considered 
around the recommendation.   
 
I am unable to see from your letter how the team criticised pupil of the week 
assemblies.  Mr Thorne states that there was a discussion regarding whether these 
included an act of collective worship.  This followed on as a line of enquiry from an 
interview with a group of Year 6 pupils who described the assemblies as only 
receiving certificates.  Mr Thorne does not recall the exact questions used with pupils 
due to the length of time since the monitoring visit.  However, the pupils discussed 
the weekly assemblies.  They also stated that there was never an assembly on a 
Friday.  Scrutiny of the school file and timetable also stated that the time allotted for 
assembly time was in fact ‘Golden Time’ in key stage 2.  Therefore, the school would 
not have met the recommendation of meeting statutory requirements for a daily act 
of collective worship.  However, during the team discussion they felt that the school 
had made progress since the core inspection and decided on a judgement of 
satisfactory progress. 
 
  

Page 34



                                                                   

 

 

 

 

 
In conclusion, I have given all the elements of your complaint serious and detailed 
consideration.  I feel that the team fully considered a wide range of evidence when 
reaching their judgement on the recommendation and, as a result, decided that 
although the school did not yet fully comply with the statutory requirements to hold a 
daily act of collective worship, it had made satisfactory progress since the core 
inspection.  The team provided a full explanation during the feedback meeting and 
Mr Thorne and Mrs McCarthy, the Reporting Inspector, state that there were no 
complaints or concerns raised at this time.   
 
It is important for Estyn to know what others think about our work and we value all 
feedback and hope that it helps us to continuously improve.   I am sorry that you 
have felt the need to raise these concerns but hope that you are satisfied that your 
complaint had been carefully considered.   
 

Yours sincerely 
 

Jonathan Cooper 
 
Jonathan Cooper, HMI 
 
 

 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of last meeting on the 1st November 2016
	Minutes

	6 Analysis of examination results 2016 (See Appendix)
	7 KS3 Levels Data 2015 and 2016
	8 Examinations Specifications / GCSE Support Programme
	9 National Curriculum Review and Assessment:  Update
	10 Estyn Annual Remit 2017/18
	12 WASACRE Issues:
	13 Correspondence
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3


